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Q&A 3.0 RFP PA Bid Ref. 5044

25 March 2010

Request for Proposals
Procurement Agent Services for

New Diagnostics for Tuberculosis
of March 2010
Bid Reference 5044
Questions & Answers, Notes
Questions (Q) received from bidders and Answers (A) provided by GDF and
Notes by GDF
1. Note: Section 3.10 / Page 21
The due date for submission of proposals is postponed until

06 April 2010 at 13.00 h, Geneva time.
2. Q: Section 1.5, para. 1 / Page 6
The wording “pooled procurement mechanism” is somehow GFATM terminology. Did GDF choose this wording purposely?
A: No. The term is only to indicate collective procurement, enabling better buying power.

3. Q: Section 2.3.1.1, para. 4 / Page 10

…”bid evaluation report(s)”… - Do you think on technical as well as financial evaluations by PA solely?
A: The evaluation report will cover the entire evaluation process, both technical and financial evaluation. For the technical evaluation, FIND will provide expert assistance.
4. Q: Section 2.3.1.9, para 1 / Page 13

To our knowledge registration of products is required by health/Government authorities and checked by customs and not by consignee. Is this correct?
A: As per the Grant Agreement signed between the Grant Recipient and WHO/GDF, the Grant Recipient shall also check and report to GDF/FIND on registration requirements.
5. Q: Section 2.3.1.9, para. 2 / Page 13
…irrespective …??? If not a pre-condition resp. if registration is not required at all under these circumstances why to press contracted suppliers to register these products? 
A: The requirement is for EXPAND TB supported countries and is intended to support the strengthening of health systems, including regulatory systems.
Q: And if there is no registration foreseen for specific equipment in a specific country how then to manage registration at importing country and with whom?
A: If there is no registration requirement for a product, suppliers are not expected to register such products.
6. Q: Section 2.3.1.9, para. 4 / Page 13
Please identify “Proposer”.

A: Proposer is the bidder responding to the Request for Proposals.

7. Q: Section 2.3.1.10, para. 5 / Page 14

How to bundle or not to bundle high value with third party shipments? Do you mean high with low value?
A: The main issue in this paragraph is security of conveyance. Avoiding of bundling of high value items with third party shipments is given as an example of addressing a particular risk (loss or misdirection of high value items).
8. Q: Section 2.3.1.15, para. 1 / Page 16
… Procurement..” is “PA”.. ?
A: In sentence 2, the word "Agent" is to be inserted after " Procurement".

9. Q: Section 2.3.2, para. 2 / Page 17
Liquidated Damages collected will remain with the PA who has to face a reduced procurement fee for the same service, not to punish the PA twice?
A: Yes, the liquidated damages collected will remain with the PA, but should be used as indicated in this provision. There should normally be no loss in procurement fee, as the goods will still be delivered by the supplier or the order will be placed with another supplier.
10. Q: Section 2.3.5 / Page 18:
formulation formula: Let us have a realistic example: A = 20;  B = 25;  O = 2; C = 0,2;  D = 1.000.000,-- (USD)  Result: QRAP = 173.913,-- (USD) This cannot be  - in order to get out of this exercise with 0,-- USD only (i.e. no cost recovery or profit to the PA) one need a procurement fee of 17,39 % already.
A: The formula gives the payment for the At Risk Portion of the Handling Fee. Indeed, however, the factor PP is missing, to be inserted after C: "X PP", with PP signifying the contracted Procurement Agent's handling fee (in %).
11. Q: Section 3 / Page 19

General question: Is it allowed to present more than one bid by the same company?
A: No.

12. Q: Section 3 / Page 19

General question: Are connected companies allowed to present separate bids?
A: For dependent companies, these should bid as a Consortium.

13. Q: Section 3.7 / Page 20
[This section ] does not give any information if technical and financial proposal have to be separated and if so, how to do the separation on the CD to be supplied. There is a slight hint on a separated financial proposal on page 25 3rd para  …”the panel will open the envelopes containing the cost proposal” …  
A: Technical and Financial Proposals shall be submitted in separate, appropriately marked and sealed envelopes.
The CD should be limited to the Technical Proposal.

14. Q: Section 3.10 / Page 21
As April 6th is the first working day following a series of Easter holidays we ask to shift the submission time from 10.00 am to 1 pm same day to allow for proper delivery.
A: Please see Note 1 above.

15. Q: Section 4.4, Sub-Section II / Page 25

Who is the Proposer?
A: The Proposer is the bidder.
16. Q: Section 4.4, Sub-Section II / Page 25

Why do you rate all financial proposals except the cheapest one using the price of C, the third lowest offer?
A: In the second bullet point, "C" should be replaced by "B".

17. Q: Section 6.3 / Page 27

Is the selected Contractor allowed to shift obligations put on him by WHO (for example not violating copy rights) to suppliers selected?
A: This depends on the specific obligations. For the cited case of industrial property rights, the PA can establish parallel obligations with suppliers, but not with the effect of exonerating the PA from these obligations. It would though, for example, be sufficient for the PA to ensure, through appropriate provisions in contracts with suppliers and implementation of such provisions, that these rights are not violated.
18. Q: Section 6.13 / Page 29

Geneva cannot be place of performance for all services the PA is contracted for.
A: Should this be the case, discussions shall take place in the context of contract conclusion following this RFP.
19. Q: Section 6.22 / Page 32

Does this mean that an offer in EUROs (or Ethiopian BIRR) is accepted by WHO and if yes, how is it converted and to which currency within the evaluation procedure?
A: No. Bids responding to the RFP should be USD-based. Implementation of the PA Contract will also be in USD, unless exceptionally otherwise agreed in writing between WHO/GDF and the PA in regard to specific supplier invoices.
20. Q: Section 6.25 / Page 33

Which ICC? Several are available. And on which legal basis does the ruling take place?
A: Where necessary, these details will be discussed in the context of contract conclusion following this RFP. Should clarification of this point in the context of this RFP process be considered essential by the bidder submitting this question, the bidder is requested to indicate this.

21. Q: Annex 3, Section 2 / Page 37:
If GDF does not pay in time is the Contractor entitled for compensation (interest rate to be detailed)?
A: This would only be possible if the contract and/or the substantive applicable law provide for such compensation. Any disputes would ultimately be settled through arbitration as provided for in Section 6.25 of the RFP.
22. Q: Section 1.5 / page 6 and Section 2.1 / page 7
Para 1.5 provides volume estimates for the four years 2010 through 2013. Para 2.1 states that the contract term will be for 12 months with the option of two 12-month extensions. What portion of the estimated volumes in para 1.5 do you expect to be procured and distributed during the maximum three-year life of the contract?
A: The contract to be issued under this RFP will prospectively take effect from 01 July 2010. Therefore, for the year 2010 only half the quantity indicated for that year (2010) in Section 1.5 would need to be procured. However, in order to allow for alignment of the duration of PA services with the project period, the indicated possible extensions of the Contract with the PA are hereby augmented by a further six month period to cover the final project period from 01 July to 31 December 2013. The total maximum contract period is therefore three and one half years.
23. Q: Section 2.2 / page 7:
Section 1.2.3 of the table requests information on staff turnover, and also information on experience in drawing up project management concepts and setting up project teams. Is this meant to be two separate questions?

A: Yes. Kindly consider the question "The Procurement Agent (PA) should … as needed" to be a separate question 1.2a.
24. Q: Section 2.2 / page 8

Section 1.5.2 of the table requests information on “contractual certification programs and certification status.” Could you clarify further what information you seek?
A: This would be any trade/industry-specific certification, such as GMP, ISO (though ISO is in this case covered under Section 2.2, question 2.1.1), Project Management Certification, Management Consultancy Certification, Audit Certification.
25. Q: Section 2.2 / page 8
Section 1.6 of the table requests information on proposed subcontractor arrangements “including company information (as above for each subcontractor).” Does this refer to the statement on line 1 of the table, page 7, “Company Information: The bidder shall be a registered institution operating in the field of procurement services with a proven track record of providing such services” or is further information needed for each subcontractor?

A: The same information is required for sub-contractors as for the main contractor, i.e. sections 1.1, 1.2, 1.2a, 1.3 etc., including their sub-sections.

26. Q: Section 2.3.1.4 / page 12
This section requests that offerors provide the capability for managing stockpiles at their own (or subcontracted) facilities or at the manufacturers’ sites. Do you expect both equipment and supplies to be stockpiled? Also, this capability is not listed in the evaluation criteria in para 4.4 (i), page 24. Could you specify how this will be weighed during proposal evaluation?

A: The stockpile would primarily focus on reagents and consumables. The activity will be rated under criterion "III. Other - Other categories in Scope of Work" in the Evaluation Table in Section 4.4.
27. Q: Section 2.3.1.5 / page 12
Do you have a sense of the portion of orders that may require consolidation across multiple suppliers? Are we correct that costs of consolidation would be reimbursed outside of the handling fee, as para 2.3.5, page 17, suggests?
A: In general, for the first shipment to a laboratory and if there is no emergency, consolidation should be aimed at. This also to facilitate if necessary the in-country customs process. On lead times (from stock) in the consolidation process: There are currently two main suppliers for equipment: BD (Warehouse in Temse, Belgium) and HAIN (Warehouse in Nehren, Germany), with short lead times of about 2 weeks. BD shipments are the most critical in terms of volume and weight in comparison to the other project items. For other suppliers we reckon with lead times of about 4 - 8 weeks.
For replenishment orders of reagents and consumables, consolidation is less critical and more of a business question, i.e. whether to consolidate in Europe and prepare as single shipment or to send supplies directly from suppliers to laboratories.

On costs of consolidation: No, this will be covered by the handling fee paid to the PA. Section 2.3.5 does not provide that these costs would be reimbursed outside of the handling fee. See also in this regard answers to questions 28 and 29 below.
28. Q: Section 2.3.1.8 / page 13
These paragraphs state that the PA “may” be requested to manage selection of and finalization of contracts for preshipment inspection and laboratory analysis and that such QA/QC services will be required on a “needs” basis, and further specifies the PA’s responsibilities in managing the QA/QC process. Paragraph 2.3.5, page 17, specifies that quality control costs are excluded from the proposed handling fee. Will such costs be reimbursed to the PA on a time-and materials basis? Do you have a sense for the level of QA/QC activities that will likely be required?

A: Section 2.3.5 does not provide that costs for managing the QA/QC process are excluded from the proposed handling fee. This activity shall be covered by the agreed handling fee.
While the RFP states that it is expected for an EOI and LICB process to be conducted every two years, a one-time process, covering a three and a half year period, will be sufficient. Implementation activities will be based on an operating procedure agreed with the QC Agent, covering steps such as but not limited to how the QC Agent is informed on a newly placed order with a supplier, time lines for executing pre-shipment inspection (PSI) and/or sampling/testing, checklist for inspectors, contents of inspection / testing reports. The PA will receive and upload the CRF and inform the freight forwarder when relevant QC steps are completed. The PA will be responsible for monitoring QC activities.
As indicated in Section 2.3.1.8, quality control services will be solicited on a needs basis. Any more regular type of services arising in this regard would be based on a randomisation concept (e.g. sampling / testing every 5th batch) provided by WHO/GDF, which would take into account particular risks of procurement.
29. Q: Section 2.3.5 / page 17
This section states that “other costs” are outside the proposed handling fee. Aside from the specified freight, insurance, and QA/QC costs, what “other” types of costs do you envision?

A: Section 2.3.5 does not state or intend to imply that other costs are not covered by the proposed handling fee. On the contrary, all activities in the RFP shall be covered by the charged handling fee. The explanation in the first paragraph of Section 2.3.5 only details how the handling fee is arithmetically calculated: as a percentage of the total USD cost of the supplies in a PO.

30. Q: Section 2.3.5 / page 17 and Q&A 1.0, question 13 / page 2
Can you provide more detail on what information you require in the Financial Proposal aside from the proposed fee(s)?
A: Optionally, bidders may break down their fee into component constituents for better understanding of the Evaluation Committee or potential contract negotiations. However, such breakdown will not be part of the formal evaluation of the Financial Proposal.
Bidders are kindly requested to also indicate insurance rates and terms and conditions if they already have an insurance underwriter under contract.

31. Q: Section 3.4 / page 19
The “Contents of the Proposal” paragraph describes two options for proposal submission that appear to be mutually exclusive. Could you clarify which option applies to this solicitation?

A: Thank you for pointing this out. Only Option 1 is valid. Paragraph two in Section 3.4, reading "Option 2: … RFP_5044_RFPCompleteness.doc" should therefore be deleted. In paragraph one, the introductory text label "Option 1: " should be struck.
32. Q: Section 3.2 / page 19

If we faxed our acknowledgment [ does the ] fax meet the 'hard copy' requirement for the RFP?

A: Yes

33. Q: Section 2.2 / pages 7 - 8

We would like to clarify our understanding of the response to your Question 25 covering company information. We can provide the requested information on [ company A] and the managing partners [company B and company C] of [ company A]; however, other team members like [company D] are just service providers. We will of course describe their role in the effort, but would have great difficulty in getting them to release the types of information requested in 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, and 1.5.

Would supplying this information for [company A], [company B] and [company C] be satisfactory and meet the obligation of this requirement?
A: In the Table in RFP Section 2.2, company information (Table Section 1) needs to be provided for all consortium members and/or sub-contractors. While the information may be considered more critical for main contractor(s) than for sub-contractors, final assessment as to satisfactory scope and contents of information provided shall rest with the Evaluation Committee for the RFP.

34. Note: Section 4.1 / page 23
All confirmed bidders, i.e. those who have returned the Acknowledgement document as per Section 3.2 para. 1 of the RFP, are invited to attend the Public Opening of proposals on
06 April 2010 at 14:00 CET
at
World Health Organization (WHO)

Room D 46031 
(WHO D-Building / UNAIDS Building 4th floor)
Avenue Appia 20

CH-1211 Geneva 27

Switzerland

At the Reception Desk of the D-Building please ask for Ms. Mireille Lembwadio, GDF Administrative Assistant, tel. +41 22 791 2440.

GDF

Geneva, 25/03/10
